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Honorable Jesse Washington, Mayor 
and Members of the Board of Aldermen 

Town of Delhi, Louisiana 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-tj^e activities, and each major fund of die Town of Delhi, Louisiana (the 
"Town"), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2020, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for die preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 
We conducted oiu: audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors 
consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for die purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal confrol. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

ACCOUNTING I ASSURANCE I AUDITING I TAX I PLANNING I BUSINESS CONSULTANTS 



Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, and each major fund information of the Town as of September 30, 2020, and the 
respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the 
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis, and budgetary comparison information, the 
schedule of proportionate share of net pension liability, the schedule of pension 
contributions, and accompanying notes be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, alfiiough not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries 
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during oiu: audit of die basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because die limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements 
that collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements. The schedule of 
compensation, benefits and other payments to the agency head, schedule of compensation 
paid to the members of the board of aldermen, and the schedule of insurance in force, are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. 

The schedule of compensation, benefits and other payments to the agency, and schedule of 
compensation paid to the members of the board of aldermen are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and related directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the financial statements. Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures apphed in the audit of the basic financial statements 
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the imderlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
In our opinion, schedule of compensation, benefits and other payments to the agency head, 
and schedule of compensation paid to the members of the board of aldermen are fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 



The schedule of insurance in force has not been subject to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued oiu: report dated 
March 10, 2021, on our consideration of the Town of Delhi, Louisiana's internal control 
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report 
is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Town's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. 
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the Town of Delhi, Louisiana's internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 

Lake Charles, Louisiana 
March 10, 2021 
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TOWTV OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) for the Town of Delhi is designed to: 

1. Assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues. 

2. Provide an ovendew of the Town's financial activities. 

3. Identify changes in the Town's overall financial position mid results of operations and assist the 
user in determining whether financial position has improved or deteriorated as a result of the 
year's operations. 

4. Identify any significant variations from the original, amended, and final budget amounts and 
include any currently known reasons for those variations that are expected to have a significant 
effect on future services or liquidity; and 

5. Identify individual fund issues or concerns. 

As management of the Town of Delhi, we offer readers of the Financial Statements this narrative 
overview mid analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the fiscal year ended September 30, 
2020. The Town began this new reporting model required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) Statement Number 34 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004. 

The information contained within this MD&A should be considered only as pmt of a greater whole. The 
readers of this statement should take time to read and evaluate all sections of this report, including the 
footnotes and other Required Supplemental Information (RSI) that is provi(kd in addition to this MD&A. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The MD&A requires supplementary information that introduces the reader to the basic financial 
statements and provides an overview of the Town's financial activities. The Town's basic financial 
statements consist of the following components; 

1. Government-wide financial statements, 

2. Fund financial statements, and 

3. Notes to the financial statements. 

Other required supplementary infonnation, including tlie required budgetary comparison schedule(s) are 
presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements. A general description of the 
components of the basic financial statements follows below, with a more detailed analysis of the 
government-wide statements included in a later section entitled "Government-wide Financial Analysis". 

1. Government-wide Financial Statements 

The Government-wide Financial Statements are designed by GASB Statement No. 34 to 
present the financial operations of the Town as a whole in a format similar to private sector 
companies. All governmental and business-type activities are consolidated into columns which 



TOWTV OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

(Contini^d) 

add to a total for the Primary Government. The focus is on the government-wide (entity-wide) 
"Statement of Net Position" and "Statement of Activities" to give the reader a broad overview 
of the Town's financial position and results of operations. 

a. The Statement of Net Position presents information on the Towm's assets and liabilities 
using the accrual basis of accounting, in a manner similar to the accounting used by private 
business enterprises. The difference between the assets and liabilities is reported as net 
position. Qv'er time, the increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful 
indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or weakening. 

b. The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government's net 
position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported 
as soon as tlie underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of 
the related cash flows. The format for the Statement of Activities presents the expenses for 
each ftinction (general government, public safety, public works and streets) reduced by the 
Program Revenues (charges for ser\dces, operating grants and contributions, and capital 
grants and contributions) directly related to each respective function, to determine net costs 
of each function. The net costs of each function are normally covered by general revenues. 

2. Fund Financial Statements 

The fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that 
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like other state and local 
governments, i^es fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
and legal requirements. The Town of Delhi uses two categories of funds to account for financial 
transactions; governmental funds, and proprietary funds. 

Governmental funds are used to account for most of the basic services and projects reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on how 
money flows into and out of those funds and the balances that are left at year-end that are 
available for spending. These fun(L are reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting, 
which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The 
governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Town's general 
government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps 
you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near 
future to finance the Town's programs. The Town of Delhi's governmental funds include the 
following: 

a. General Fund is used for accounting for the Town's basic services. 
b. Special Revenue Fund - Sales Tax Fund is used for accounting for tlie receipts and 

disbursements of the sales tax monies. 
c. Capital Projects Fund is used for accounting for financial transactions under a Louisiana 

Community Development Block Grant. 
d. Debt ServTce Fund is used for accounting for the transfers and payments of monies used to 

retire debt of tlie Town. 



TOWTV OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

(Contini^d) 

The Proprietary Fund accounts for water and sew^er ser\'ices for the Town of Delhi. Enterprise 
funds are used to account for the smne functions as business-type activities presented in the 
government-wide financial statements, but the fund presentation provi(ks more details. 

Because the focus of governmental flinds is narrower than that of the govermnent-wide 
financial statements, there are differences in the information presented for government funds 
and for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Review of these 
differences provides the reader of the financial statement's insiglit on the long-term impact of 
the Town's more immediate decisions on the current use of financial resources. Whereas the 
total column on the enterprise fund financial statements is the same as the business-type column 
of the govemment-wide financial statements, the governmental funds columns of the fund 
financial statements require and include a reconciliation following the balance sheet and the 
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fmid balances. 

3. Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes to the financial statements provide information essential to a full understanding of the 
govemment-wdde and fiind financial statements. When reviewing this MD&A, the reader 
should also refer to and review the notes to the basic financial statements, as well as the 
govemment-wide and fund financial statements. 

4. Required Supplementary Information 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents 
certain required supplemental information conceming the Town's budget presentations. 
Budgetary comparison schedules are included as "Required Supplementary Infonnation (Fart 
II)" for the general and special revenue funds. These schedules demonstrate compliance with 
the Town's adopted and final revised budget. 

Govemment-wide Financial Analvsis 

As noted earlier, net position may, over time, serve as a useful indicator of a government's financial 
condition. At the close of the most recent fiscal year, the Town's assets exceeded its liabilities by 
$26,228,233. 

The Town's net positions are comprised of $12,444,673 from governmental activities and $13,783,560 
from business-type activities. 



TOWTV OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

(Contini^d) 

The following is a condensed statement of the Town's net position as of September 30. 2020; 

Activities 
Assets: 

Crurent assets 
Restricted assets 
Capital assets 

Total Assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Liabilities: 
Ciurent liabilities 
Noncurrent liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities 

5,138,369 
541,047 

8.039.732 

13.719.148 

180.851 

327,586 
981.362 

350,898 
3,744,757 

22.959.097 

27.054,752 

1,308.948 

1,157,428 
12.113.764 
13.271.192 

Primary 
Government 

Total 

$ 5,489,267 
4,285,804 

30,998,829 

40,773,900 

180.851 

1,485,014 
13.095.126 
14.580,140 

Percentage 

13% 
11% 
76% 

100% 

10% 
90% 

100% 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 146.377 146.377 

Net Position: 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

TotalNet Position 

8,039,732 9,892,919 
541,047 952,414 

3.863.894 2.938.227 

12.444.673 S 13.783.560 

17,932,651 
1,493,461 
6,802,121 

26228.233 

26% 

100% 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

(Contini^d) 

The Town's net position at September 30, 2019, was $12,098,409 for governmental Activities and 
$13,187,450 for Business-Type Activities. The following is a condensed statement of the Town's net 
position as of September 30, 2019; 

Activities 
Assets: 

Ciurent assets 
Restricted assets 
Capital assets 

Total Assets 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 4,545,741 
499,237 

8,291,024 

13.336.002 

Bi^iness-Type 
Activities 

$ 509,842 
3,695,948 

23,240,603 

27,446,393 

Primary 
Government 

Total 

$ 5,055,583 
4,195,185 

31,531,627 

40.782.395 

Percentage 

13% 
10% 
77% 

100% 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 236.220 236,220 

Liabilities: 
Ciurent liabilities 
Noncurrent liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

270,293 
1,082,576 

1,352,869 

1,164,967 
13,093,976 

14,258,943 

1,435,260 
14,176,552 

15,611,812 

9% 
91% 

100% 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 120.944 120.944 

Net Position: 
Net inv'estoient in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

8,291,024 
1,017,648 
2,789,737 

9,240,586 
3,565,446 

381,418 

12.098.409 $ 13.187.450 

17,531,610 
4,583,094 
3,171,155 

25.285.859 

69% 
18% 
13% 

100% 

The current ratio compares current assets to current liabilities and is an indication of the ability to pay 
current obligations. The Town's current ratio as of September 30, 2020 is 15.69 to 1 for governmental 
activities and 0.30 to 1 for business-type activities. The current ratio as of September 30, 2019 is 16.82 to 
1 for governmental activities and 0.44 to 1 for business-type activities. The Town's overall current ratio 
is 3.70 to 1 as of September 30, 2020, and 3.52 to 1 as of September 30, 2019. These ratios indicate a 
good current financial position. 

The Town reported positive balances in net position for both governmental and business-ty^je activities 
for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019. Net position decreased in governmental activities by 
$346,264 and increased in business-type activities by $596,110. The Town's total net position increased 
by 3.82% during the fiscal year ending September 30, 2020. The Town's net position for the year ended 
September 30, 2019 increased in governmental activities by $227,937 and increased in business-type 
activities bv $170,871. During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, total net position increased bv 
l.( 



TOWTV OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

(Contini^d) 

The largest category of net position is "Net Investment in Capital Assets" and comprises 68% of net 
position. This category reflects the total invested in capital assets (land, buildings, equipment, 
infrastructure, utility system improvements, etc.). These capital assets are used to provide sendees to 
citizens and do not represent resources available for future spending. 

The following is a condensed statement of the Town's activities for the year ended September 30, 2020: 

Governmental Bi^iness-Type 
Revenues: Acthdties Activdties Total Percentage 
Program: 

Charges for sendees $ 567,069 $ 3,472,776 $ 4,039,845 66% 
Operating grants and contrft)utions 62,921 6,400 69,321 1% 
Capital grants and contributions 27U50 - 271,250 4% 

Cfeneraf 

Property tax 216,054 - 216,054 4% 
Sales tax 1,192,144 - 1,192,144 20% 
Franchise tax 72,943 - 72,943 1% 
Beer tax 4,726 - 4,726 0% 
Interest 19,484 30,560 50,044 1% 
Other 1S5J17 - 185,717 3% 

Total Revenues 2.592,308 3.509.736 6,102.044 100% 

Program Expenses: 

General government 1,612,032 - 1,612,032 31% 
Public safety; 738,888 - 738,888 14% 
Streets 333,439 - 333,439 6% 
Recreation 2U86 - 21,286 0% 
Fees - 32,890 32,890 1% 
Interest - 275,530 275,530 5% 
Water and sewer - 2.145.605 2,145,605 42% 

Total Program Expenses 2.705.645 2.454.025 5.159,670 100% 

Excess (Deficiency) (113,337) 1,055,711 942,374 
Transfers In (Out) 459.601 (459.601) -

Change in Net Position 346,264 596,110 942,374 
Beginning Net Position 12,098.409 13.187.450 25.285,859 
Ending Net Position S 12.444.673 $ 13.783.560 $ 26.228.233 



TOWTV OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

(Contini^d) 

The following is a condensed statement of the Town's activities for the year ended September 30, 2019: 

Governmental Business-Type 

Revenues: 

Program: 

Charges for services 

Operating grants and contributions 

Capital grants and contributions 

General: 

Property tax 

Franchise tax 

Sales tax 

Beer tax 

Interest 

Other 

Total Revenues 

Program Expenses: 

General government 

Public safety: 

Recreation 

Streets 

Interest 

Water and sewer 

Total Program Expenses 

Excess (Deficiency) 

Transfers In (Out) 

Change in Net Position 

Beginning Net Position 

Ending Net Position 

Acthities 

2.479,505 

1,701,756 

724,944 

44,128 

484,390 

2.955.218 

(475,713) 

703.650 

227,937 

11.870.472 

Actwities 

639,219 $ 

263,649 

208,294 
74,225 

1,138,176 
4,718 
15,569 

135.655 

3,384,468 

30,930 

2,475 

3.417.873 

325,716 

2,217,636 

2.543.352 

874,521 

(703.650) 

170,871 

13.016.579 

Total 

4,023,687 

294.579 

208,294 

74225 

1,138,176 

4,718 

15,569 

138,130 

5,897.378 

1,701,756 
724,944 
44,128 

484,390 
325,716 

2,217,636 

5.498.570 

12.098.409 $ 13.187.450 

24.887.051 

25285.859 

Percentage 

69% 

5% 

4% 

1% 

0% 

2% 

100% 

30% 

13% 

1% 

9% 

6% 

41% 

The Condensed Statement of Activities presents revenues, expenses, and changes in net position 
separately for governmental activities and business-type activities. The condensed format allows for 
presentation of Program Revenues (Charges for Services, Operating Grants and Contributions, and 
Capital Grants and Contributions) followed by a listing of General Revenues to support the Town's 
overall governmental or business-type activities. Expenses are presented on a functional basis. 

10 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

(Contini^d) 

As noted above, there are two categories of revenues on the Statement of Activities - "Program 
Revenues" and "General Revenues". "Program Revenues" derive directly from the program itself or 
from parties outside the Town's taxpayers or citizenry, as a whole; they reduce the net cost of the function 
to be financed from the government's "General Revenues". "Program Revenues" are further divided into 
Charges for Services, Operating Grants and Contributions, and Capital Grants and Contributions. The 
major revenues in govermnental activities for the Town in the Charges for Services sub-category are 
$54,028 for police and court fines, $300,221 for garbage collection, and $212,820 for occupational 
licenses for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020, and $84,101 for police and court fines, $279,339 
for garbage collection, and $275,779 for occupational licenses for the fiscal year ended September 30, 
2019. Revenues in the Operating Grants and Contributions sub-category consist of $69,231 and $263,649 
for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The revenues required to be 
reported provided for supplemental police pay, with the balance consisting primarily of intergovernmental 
grants for community development, reimbursement for highway maintenance, and fire insurance rebates. 
Revenues in the Capital Grants and Contributions sub-category consist of $271,250 and $0 for the fiscal 
years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. "Revenues" include all revenues not required to 
be reported as "Program Revenues". All taxes are to be reported by type. The major tax revenues for the 
Town of Delhi are sales tax revenues of $1,192,144, property taxes of $216,054, and francliise taxes of 
$72,943 for the year ended September 30, 2020. The major tax revenues for the year ended September 30, 
2019, are sales tax revenues of $1,138,176, propert}'^ taxes of $208,294, and franchise taxes of $74,225. 
Other "General Revenues" reported for the year ended September 30, 2020 includes $4,726 in beer tax, 
and $147,766 in rents and $37,950 other miscellaneous revenues. 

"Program Expenses" for the governmental fiinds are presented in the above Condensed Statement of 
Activities by function and total $2,705,645 and $2,955,218 (including interest on long-term debt) for the 
fiscal years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 

Business-Type Activities provided by the Town of Delhi consists of water and sewer utilities. All 
revenues are in the category of "Program Revenues", w4th the exceptions of interest income and 
miscellaneous income reported as "General Revenue". "Program Revenues" in the Charges for Services 
sub-category consists of billings of $3,472,776 for water and sewer for the year ended September 30, 
2020, and $3,384,468 for water and sewer for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019. 

The Town reports the total amount of expenses for operation of the utility system as $2,454,025 and 
$2,543,352 for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, respeetively. The "Change in Net 
Position" (revenues less expenses) for the utility system was $596,110 and $170,871 for the fiscal years 
ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 

Capital Assets and Long-Term Debt 

The Town's investment in capital assets, net of accumulated (kpreciation, for governmental and business-
type activities as of September 30, 2020 was $8,039,732 and $22,959,097, respeetively, and $8,291,024 
and $23,240,603, respectively, as of September 30, 2019. For the year ended September 30, 2020, net 
investment for govermnental type activities decreased by 3% while net investment for business-t}pe 
activities increased by 7%. For the year ended September 30, 2019, net investment for governmental type 
activities decreased by 1% while net investment for business-type activities decreased by 7%. There was 
an overall increase in capital asset investment for the Town as a whole of 2% and 3.32% for the years 
ended September 30, 2020 and September 30, 2019 respectively. 

11 
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For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

(Contini^d) 

As of September 30, 2020, and 2019, the Town had total bond indebtedness in the amount of SI 3,066,178 
and $14,000,017, respectively, a decrease of 7%. The Town will incur $783,231 in interest and fees over 
the next five years in connection with the 2006 sewer reveni^ bond issue. The Town will incur $213,155 
of interest and fees over the next five years in connection with the 2010 sewer revenue bond issue. The 
Town will incur an estimated $955,012 of interest and fees over the next five years in connection with the 
2010 water revenue bond issue. More detailed information about the Town's certificates of indebtedness 
and bond indebtedness is presented in Note 6. 

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank) 
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The following tables provide a summary of capital asset activity for 2020: 

Govemniental activities: 

Capital assets not being depreckted: 

Land 

Constructioii in progiess 

Odier capital assets: 

Buildings 

Infrastructure 

Fquytnent 

Totals 

Less accuimikted cfepiecktion: 

InfrastiTJcture 

E(jj^nent 

Total acciumilated deprecktioii 

Governmental activities: 

Capital assets, net 

Balance 

10/1/2019 

$ 284,161 

136,078 

6,113,435 

11,086,078 

1,706,686 

19,326,438 

3,206,968 

6,503,628 

1.324.819 

11,035.415 

S 8291.024 

Addilkns 

15,067 

421,352 

57,388 

493,807 

125,752 

354,906 

90,245 

570,903 

Detetions 

97,324 

27,334 

136.078 

260.736 

86.540 

86.540 

(77.096) 174.196 

Balance 

9/30/2020 

$ 284,161 

136,078 

6,031,178 
11,480,096 
1,627.996 

19,559,509 

3,332,720 
6,858,534 
1,328,524 

11,519,778 

S 8.039.732 

Business-type actikties: 

Capital assets not being deiaeckted: 

Land 

Land inqaoveinent 

Other capital assets: 

Buildings 

Infrastructure 

EquijnKnt 

Totals 

Less accumulated deprecktion; 
Land inqjimement 

InfrastiTJcture 

E(jj^nent 

Total acciumilated deprecktion 

Business-type activities: 

Capital assets, net 

Baknce 

10/1/2019 

$ 10.718 

66,850 

551,224 
30,416,029 

9%, 147 

32,034.968 

16,353 
282,377 

7,723,458 
772,177 

8,794,365 

S 23.240.603 

Addilkns 

500,495 

23.421 

523,916 

1,903 

8,749 

690,430 

738.571 

£ (214.655) 

Detetions 

22.989 

89.839 

22.989 

22.989 

66.850 

Baknce 

9/30/2020 

10.718 

551,224 
30,916,524 

990,579 

32,469.045 

18,256 
291,126 

8,413,888 
786,677 

9.509.947 

S 22.959.098 
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TOWTV OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

(Contini^d) 

The following tables provide a summary of capital asset activity for 2019: 

Goveiimiental actrvities: 
Capital assets not teing depreciated: 

Land 
Constnictbn in progi'ess 

Other capital assets; 
Building 
Infrastructure 
Eqiipnent 

Totab 
Less accmnulated depreciation; 

Buildings 

Infrastructiffe 

Equpnent 
Total accuniulated depreciation 

Goveinniental activities: 
Capital assets, net 

Baknce 
10/1/2018 

284,161 
167,075 

6,022,268 
10,756369 

1.626,013 

18.855.886 

3,082395 
6,082,668 
1.312.684 

10.477.747 

8378.139 

Additions 

136,080 

91,166 
329,709 

80.673 

637.628 

124,572 
351,114 

81.980 
557.666 

Deletions 

167.077 

167.077 

Bahnce 
9/30/2019 

79.963 167.077 

284,161 
136,078 

6,113.434 
11,086,078 

1,706,686 

19.326.437 

3306,967 
6,433,782 
1.394.664 

11.035.413 

8391,024 

Business-type activtties: 
Capital assets not 

Land 
Land lupovenient 

Otlier capital assets: 
Biiildii^ 

Infrastructure 
Equpment 

Less accmnulated depreciation: 
Land Improvement 

Buildings 

Infrastructure 

Equpment 

Total accmmilated depreciation 

Business-type activtties: 
Capital assets, net 

10.718 

551324 

30,038,892 

971.344 

31.572.178 

14,450 

273,628 
7,053,371 

726.797 

8.068346 

S 23.503.932 

66.850 

389,761 

18.803 

475.414 

1,903 

8,749 
670,087 

45380 

726.119 

$ (•250.705> 

12.624 

12.624 

12.624 

S 10,718 
66,850 

551,224 

30,416,029 
990,147 

32.034.968 

163.53 

282,377 
7,723,458 

772.177 

8.794.365 

S 23.240.603 

Required Supplementary Information 

In addition to tliis MD&A and the basic financial statements, tliis report also presents certain required 
supplementary information. This required supplementary information for the Town of Delhi includes the 
budgetary comparison sehedule for the general fund, and special revenue fund. The presentation under 
the GASB 34 standard requires disclosure of both the original and the final budget. The original budget is 
the first complete appropriated budget. The final biujget is tlie original budget adjusted by all reserves, 
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TOWTV OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

(Contini^d) 

transfers, allocations, supplemental appropriations, and other legally authorized legislative and executive 
changes applicable to the fiscal year, whenever signed into law or otherwise legally authorized. 

Contacting the Town's Financial Management 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town's finances, comply with 
finance-related laws and regulations, and demonstrate the Town's commitment to public accountability. 
If you have questions about this report or would like to request additional infomiation, contact the Town's 
clerk at Town of Delhi, Louisiana. 

Mayor, Town of Delhi, Louisiana 
(318)488-0138 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Net Position 
September 30, 2020 

Piiinaiy Government 
Governmental 

Activities 
Business-type 

Acti^xties Total 

ASSETS 
C^uireiit Assets; 

Cash aiid Cash Equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables, net 
Prepaid Insurance 
Internal Balances 

$ 4,119.129 
709,347 
209,905 

10,427 
89.561 

$ 90.133 $ 

345,745 
4,581 

(89,561) 

4.209,262 
709.347 
555,650 
15,008 

Total Current Assets 5,138.369 350.898 5.489,267 

Non-Current Assets; 
Restricted Assets; 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
hivestments 

Capital Assets; 
Land 
Depreciable (net) 

155,204 
385.843 

284,161 
7,755.571 

2,789,102 
955,655 

10,718 
22,948,379 

2,944,306 
1.341,498 

294.879 
30.703,950 

Total Non-Cuirent Assets 8,580,779 26.703,854 35,284.633 

Total Assets 13,719,148 27.054,752 40,773.900 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Defened outflows of Resources Related to Net Pension Liability 180.851 180,851 

Total Assets and Defeixed Outflows of Resomces 13,899,999 27.054,752 40,954.751 

LIABILITIES 
Cunent Liabilities; 

Accounts Payable 
Acaued Expenses 
Customer Deposits 
Current Portion of Bonds Payable 

311,120 
16,466 

61,718 
9,542 

133,754 
952,414 

372,838 
26,008 

133,754 
952,414 

Total C^mrent Liabilities 327.586 1.157,428 1.485,014 

Non-Current Liabilities; 
Bonds Payable after One Year 
Compensated Absences 
Net Pension Liability 

63,338 
918.025 

12.113,764 12,113,764 
63,338 

918,025 

Total Non-Cuirent Liabilities 981,363 12.113,764 13,095,127 

Total Liabilities 1,308.949 13,271,192 14.580,141 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Defeixed Inflows of Recourses Related to Net Pension Liability 146,377 146,377 

NET POSITION 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Restiicted for; 

Debt Service 
Capital Project 

Unrestricted 

8,039.732 

3,438,967 
965.974 

9,892.919 

952,414 
2.658,589 

279,638 

17.932,651 

952,414 
6,097.556 
1,245,612 

Total Net Position 12,444,673 13.783,560 26,228,233 

Total Liabihties, Deferred Tnflows of Resources, and Net Position $ 13,899,999 $ 27,054,752 $ 40,954,751 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

PROGRAM REVENUES PRUVLARY GOVERNMENT 
CHARGES OPERATING CAPITAL 

FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND GOVERN-MENTAL BUSINESS-TATE 
EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS ACTIVITIES ACTXVITES TOTALS 

Functions,''Pi-oerams 
Primary Govenimeut: 

Govenimental Activities: 

General Government $ 1,612,032 $ - $ 62,92! $ 271,250 $ (1.277,861) s $ (1,277,861) 

Public Safety: 738.888 54,028 - (684,860) - (684,860) 

Streets 333.439 - - (333,439) - (333,439) 

Recreation 21,286 - - (21,286) - (21,286) 

License and Penuits - 212,820 - 212,820 - 212,820 

Garbage Collection - 300.221 - 300.221 - 300,221 

Total Govenimental Activities 2,705,645 567,069 62,921 271.250 (1,804,405) - (1,804,405) 

Business-type Activities: 

Water and Sewer 2,145,605 3.455.383 6,400 - 1,316,178 1,316,178 
Fees 32,890 17,393 - - (15,497) (15,497) 

Interest and Fees on Long-term Debt 275.530 - - - (275,530) (275,530) 

Total Business-type Activities 2,454.025 3.472.776 6,400 - 1,025.151 1.025,151 

Total Primary Govenimeut S 5,159,670 $ 4,039,845 $ 69,321 $ 271,250 (1,804,405) 1,025,151 (779,254) 

General Revenues: 

Taxes: 
Prc^eity Taxes 216,054 - 216,054 

Sales Taxes 1.192.144 - 1,192,144 

Franchise Fee 72.943 - 72.943 

Beer Tax 4,726 - 4,726 

Interest and Investment Income 19.484 30.560 50,044 
Otlier 185.717 - 185.717 

Transfers 459.601 (459,601) -
Total General Revenues and Transfers 2.150.669 (429,041) 1,721,628 

Change in Net Position 346.264 596,110 942,374 

Net Position, Beginning 12.098.409 13.187.4.50 25.285.859 

Net Position, Ending $ 12.444.673 $ 13,783,560 $ 26,228,233 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Balance Sheets 
Governmental Funds 
September 30, 2020 

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables; 

Franchise Fees 
Fines Revenue 
Sales Tax 
Rent and Royalties 
Grants 
Other 

Due from Other Funds 
Prepaid Insurance 
Restricted Assets: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investments 

TOTAL ASSETS 

General 
Fund 

.1,819,706 
85,344 

21.354 
49,136 

4,732 
25.000 

246 
97,565 

9,313 

155,204 
385,843 

.2,653,443 

Total 
Sales Tax Capital LCDBG Governmental 

Fund Projects Fund Fund Funds 

.2,290,713 
624.003 

109.437 

833 
1.114 

.610 100 S 4.119,129 
709,347 

21,354 
49,136 
109,437 
4,732 
25,000 

246 
98,398 
10,427 

155,204 
385.843 

3.026,100 .610 100 S 5. .253 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable $ 282,719 $ 28,401 
Accrued Expenses 16,466 

Due to Other Funds 2 8,837 

Total Liabilities 299.185 37.238 

311,120 
16,466 
8.837 

336,423 

RJND BALANCE 
Restricted 
Assigned - Capital Assets 
Unassigned 

Total Fund Balance 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 

FUND BALANCE 

541,047 

1,813,211 

2.354.258 

2,241,646 

747,216 

2,988.862 

100 
.610 

1,610 100 

.2,653,443 $3,026,100 S 8,610 

2.782,693 
100 

2,569,037 

5,351,830 

100 S 5,688,253 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 
to the Government-Wide Financial Statement of Net Position 

September 30, 2020 

Total fund balances for governmental funds at September 30, 2020 $ 5,351,830 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position 
are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not 
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in 
die governmental fimds. 

Land 284,161 

Buildings, net of accumulated depreciation 2,698,458 
Equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 408,217 
Infrastructure, net of accumulated depreciation 4 543 395 3 939 732 

The deferred outflows of contributions to retirement systems are not available 

resources, and therefore, are not reported in the funds. 180,851 

Long-term liabilities at September 30, 2020 

Compensated absences (63,338) 

Net pension liability (918,025) 

The deferred inflows of contributions to retirement systems are not payable from 
current expendable resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (146,377) 

Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 12,444,673 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

Reveimes: 
Taxes: 

Ad \'a]oreoi 
Sales and Use 
Other Taxes, Penalties. Interest, etc. 

Liceiises and Permits 
Intergovemmetital Revenues: 

State Funds: 
Transportation Funds 
Giants 
Police Supplemental Pay 

Fines 
Garbage Collection 
Investment Earnings 
Otlier Revenues 

Rent 
MisceOaneous 

Total Revenues 

General 
Fund 

216,054 

88.490 
212,820 

4.160 
58,761 
37.950 
54,028 

300.221 

107.007 
40,759 

1,120.250 

Sales Tax 
Fmid 

1,192,144 

8.663 

Capital 
Projects 

Fmid 
LCDBG 

Fund 

271,250 

1,200,807 271.250 

Total 
Governmental 

Fmids 

216.054 
1.192,144 

88.490 
212,820 

4,160 
330.011 
37,950 
54.028 

300,221 
8.663 

107,007 
40.759 

2.592,307 

Earenditures: 
General Government 
Public Safety 
Streets 
Recreation 
Capital Outlay 

Total Expendituies 

870.240 
595.128 
237,146 

353.451 

2.055.965 

395,330 
3.712 
2,716 

12.761 
4,279 

418.798 

1.265,570 
598.840 
239,862 

12,761 
357,730 

2,474.763 

Excess (Dellcieiicy) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (935.7IS) 782,009 271.250 117,544 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfer hi 
Transfei-s Out 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

1,261.772 

1,261,772 

(491,772) 

(491,772) 

(39.249) 

(39,249) 

81.660 
(352.810) 

(271,150) 

1.343,432 
(883,831) 

459,601 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balances - Beginning 

Fund Balances - Ending 

326,057 

2,028,201 

$ 2.354.258 

290.237 

2,698,625 

2,988.862 

(39,249) 

47,859 

100 

8.610 100 

577.145 

4,774,685 

S 5,351.830 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance to tlie Statement of Actmties 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

Net Changes in Fund Balances, Total Governmental Fimds $ 577,145 

^^noimts reported for govermiiental activities in the Statement of 
Activities are different because; 

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However; 
in the government-wide statement of activities the cost of those 
assets is allocated over then estimated useftr! lives as depreciation 
expense. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeds capital outlays. 

Capital outlay 357,730 
Deprecation expense (570,902) (213,172) 

The liability and expense for compensated absences are not reported in governmental 
firnds. Instead, payments for compensated absences are reported as salaries 
when they occur. Only the payment consmiies current financial resources and it 
would take a catastrophic event for this liability to become a current liability. (6,733) 

Net pension (expense) benefit not requiring the use of current economic 

resources, and therefore, are not recorded as a fltnd expenditure. (10,976) 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 346,264 

The accompanjdng notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Net Position 
Proprietary Fund 

September 30, 2020 

ASSETS 
Current Assets: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Receivables - User Charges, net 

Receivables - Grant 
Prepaid Insurance 
Due from Otlier Funds 

Total Current Assets 

Non-Current Assets: 
Restricted Assets: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Investments 
Capital Assets: 

Non-depreciable 
Depreciable, net 

Total Non-Current Assets 

Total Assets 

90,133 

305,745 
40,000 

4,581 
7.648 

448.107 

2,789,102 
955,655 

10,718 
22,948,379 

26,703,854 

27,151,961 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 
Accured Payroll Liability 
Customer Deposits 
Due to Other Funds 
Current Portion of Bonds Payable 

Total Current Liabilities 

61.718 
9,542 

133,754 
97,209 

952.414 

1,254,637 

Non-Current Liabilities; 
Bonds Payable, after one year 

Total Liabilities 

NET POSITION 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 

Restricted Net Position 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

Total Liabilities and Net Position 

12,113,764 

13.368.401 

9,892,919 
3,611,003 
279,638 

13,783,560 

27,151,961 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position 
Proprietary Fund 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

Operating Revenues 
User Charges 
Fees 
Other 

Total Operating Revenues 

Enterprise Fund 
Water System 

$ 3,454,512 
17,393 

871 

3,472,776 

Operating Expenses 
Salaries, Wages and Employee Benefits 
Contractual Services, Materials and Supplies 
Depreciation Expense 
Insurance and Other Expenses 

Total Operating Expenses 

394,667 
534,034 
738,571 
478,333 

2,145,605 

Operating Income 1,327,171 

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 
State Grmit 
Income on Investments 
Administrative Fees on Bonds Payable 
Interest Expense on Bonds Payable 

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 

6,400 
30,559 

(32,890) 
(275,530) 

(271,461) 

Income Before Contributions and Transfers 1,055,710 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers In 
Transfers (Out) 

Total Other Financial Sources (Uses) 

352,810 
(812,410) 

(459,600) 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position, Beginning of Year 

596,110 

13,187,450 

Net Position, End of Year 13,783,560 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Fund 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 
Receipts from Customers and Users 
Payments to Suppliers 
Payments to Employees 
Other Operating Payments 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Enterprise Fund 
Water System 

3,435,170 
(599,242) 
(386,622) 
(478,576) 

1,970,730 

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities 
Due from Other Funds 
Due to Other Funds 
Transfers from Other Funds 
Transfers to Other Funds 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non eapital Financing Activities 

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Interest Expenses 
Purchase of Capital Assets 
Administrative fees on Bonds Payable 
Repayment of Long-term Debt 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities 

74 
(97,209) 
352,810 

(812,410) 

(549,161) 

(275,530) 
(523,916) 

(32,890) 
(685,671) 

(1,518,007) 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 
Change in Investment 
Interest Income 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 

(51,880) 
30.559 

(21,321) 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 

(117,759) 

2,996,994 

2.879.235 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Fund 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided (Used) 
by Operating Activities: 

(contiuned) 
Enterprise Fund 
Water System 

Operating Income 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash 

Used by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation 
Change in Assets and Liabilities: 

Increase in account receivables 
Increase in prepaid insurance 
Decrease in accounts payables 
Increase in accrued expenses 
Increase in customer deposits 

L327J71 

738,571 

(40,857) 
(243) 

(65,208) 
8,045 
3.251 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Reconciliation of Total Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

1.970.730 

Current Assets - Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Restricted Assets - Cash and Cash Equivalents 

90,133 
2.789.102 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.879.235 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWTV OF DELHI, LOLISIANA 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accompanying financial statements of the Towm of Delhi (Towm) have been prepared in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. GAAP includes 
all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. In the government-
wide financial statements and the fund financial statements for the proprietary fimds, Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Aceounting Principles Board (APB) opinions 
on or before November 30, 1989, have been applied unless those pronouncements conflict wdth or 
contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails. The accounting and reporting 
framework and the more significant accounting policies are discussed in subsequent subsections of this 
note. 

The Town follows GASB Statement No.34 Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion 
and Analysis - for State and Local Governments. Certain of the significant features of the Statement 
include the following; 

• A Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section is provided which includes an 
analysis of the Town's overall financial position and results of operations. 

• Financial statements are prepared using full accrual accounting for all of the Towm's activities, 
including infrastructure (roads, bridges, etc.); and 

• Fund financial statements with a focus on the major funds. 

The Town was incorporated under the Lawrason Act and operates under a Mayor-Board of Aldermen 
form of government. This report includes all funds that are controlled by or dependent on the Town's 
executive and legislative branches (the Mayor and Board of Aldermen). Control by or dependence on the 
Town was determined on the basis of budget adoption, taxing authority, authority to issue debt, election 
or appointment of governing body and other general oversight responsibility. 

As the municipal governing authority, for reporting purposes, the Town of Delhi, Louisiana is considered 
a separate financial reporting entity. The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government 
(municipality), (b) organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable, (c) other 
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are 
such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or 
incomplete, and (d) organizations that are closely related to, or financially integrated with the primary 
government. 

Section 2100 of the 2011 Governmental According Standards Board (GASB) Codification of 
Governm.ental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, "Defining the Financial Reporting Entity" 
establishes criteria for determining which entities should be eonsidered a component unit and, as such part 
of the reporting entity for financial reporting purposes. The basic criteria are as follows: 

1. Legal status of the potential component unit including the right to incur its own debt, levy its 
own taxes and charges, expropriate property in its own name, sue and be sued, and the right 
to buy, sell and lease property in its own name. 
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TOWTV OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

2. Whether the primary government's authority (Mayor and Board of Alderman) appoints a 
majority of board members of the potential component unit and is able to impose its will on 
potential component imit or whether the potential component unit is fiscally dependent on the 
primary government. 

3. Financial benefit>'burden relationship between the primary government and the potential 
component unit. 

4. The nature and significance of the relationship between the potential component units with 
the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial 
statements to be misleading. 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The goveniment-wdde financial statements (GWFS i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of 
activities) display information about the reporting government as a whole. They include all funds of the 
reporting entity. The statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities. 
Governmental activities generally are financed tlirough taxes, intergovermnental revenues, and other non-
exchange revenues. Business-type activities are financed in wEole or in part by fees charged to external 
parties for goods or services. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the 
business-type activities of the Town and for each function of the Town's governmental activities. Direct 
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly 
identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the 
recipients of goods or serv ices offered by the programs, and (b) grants and contributions that are restrieted 
to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not 
classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 

The Town reports all direct expenses by function in the statement of activities. Direct expenses are those 
that are clearly identifiable with the fmiction. Depreciation expense is specifically identified by function 
and is included in the direct expense of each function. Interest on long-term (kbt is considered an indirect 
expense and is reported separately on the statement of activities. 

The content and certain titles of the GWFS were changed upon the adoption in the current fiscal year of 
GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, DefeiTed Inflows of 
Resources, and Net Position. This statement provides reporting guidance for deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources, and adds them, when applicable, as elements of the GWFS 
because they are distinct fiom assets and liabilities. In addition, because these additional elements may 
affect the residual amount of all of the elements presented in a statement of financial position, GASB 63 
renames that measure as net position rather than net assets. The Town had deferred outflows of resources 
related to net pension liability in the amount of $205,587 and deferred inflows related to net pension 
liability of $918,025 at September 30, 2020. No reclassifications affecting the statement of net position 
from the prior period are required. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

The accounts of the Town are organized on the basis of funds. A fund is a separate accounting entity wdth 
a self-balancing set of accounts. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual 
funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities 
are controlled. The various funds of the Town are classified into two categories: governmental and 
proprietary. The emphasis on fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, 
each displayed in a separate column. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fiind of the 
Town or meets the following criteria: 

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or 
enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or 
type: and 

b. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental or 
enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the conesponding total for all governmental and enterprise 
funds combined. 

Governmental Funds 

General Funds - This fund is the general operating fiind of the Town. It is used to account for all 
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Special Revenue Funds - These funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue 
sources (other than special assessments, expendable trusts, or major capital projects) that are 
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 

Debt Service Funds - These funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and 
the payments of, general long-tenn debt principal, interest and related costs. 

• Capital Projects Funds - These funds are used to account for tlie financial resources used for the 
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities. 

Proprietary Fund 

• Enteiprise Fund - This fund is used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in 
a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that 
the costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or 
recovered primarily through user charges, or (b) where the governing body has decided that 
periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and or net income is appropriate 
for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes. 

The Enterprise Fund (Water System) is accounted for on a cost of sendees or "capital maintenance" basis. 
This means that all assets and all liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with its activity are 
included on its balance sheet. Its reported fiind equity (net total position) is segregated into contributed 
capital and retained earnings components. Proprietaiy^ fiind type operating statements present increases 
(revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total position. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financia! Statement Presentation 

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "which" transactions are recorded within the various 
finmicial statements. Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are 
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the 
timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied. 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary^ fund financial statements. Revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. 
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the 
provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the 
govermnent considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the 
current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 
accounting. However, debt sendee expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences 
and claims andjudgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal 
period. Only the portion of special assessment receivable due with the current fiscal period is considered 
to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. AH other revenue items are considered to be 
measurable and available only when cash is received by the government. 

The proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting. Uncfcr the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when 
earned, and expenses are recognized when the liability is incurred, or economic asset used. Proprietary 
funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result fi"om providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with 
a proprietary flmd's principal ongoing operations. Operating revenues for the Towm's proprietary fund 
consist of charges to customers and users of its water services. Operating expenses for the Town's 
proprietary^ fund include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on 
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating 
revenues and expenses. 

Since the fund level statements are presented using a different measurement focus and basis of accounting 
than the government-wide statements, a reconciliation is presented on the page following each fmid level 
statement that summarizes the adjustments necessary to convert the fimd level statements into the 
government-wide presentations. As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated 
from the government-wide financial statements. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Inter-fund Balances (Due From to Other Funds) 

Inter-fiind activity is reported as loans, services pro\ided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are 
reported as inter-fund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon 
consolidation. Ser\dces provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues 
and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when a fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate 
benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other inter-fund transactions are 
treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or enterprise funds are netted as part of the 
reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements. 

Resources belonging to particular flinds are commonly shared wdth other funds that need access to 
additional resources. When resources are provided without the expectation of repayment, the transaction 
is reported as a transfer and is treated as a source of income by the recipient fund and as an expenditure 
by the providing fund. 

In the process of aggregating data for the statement of net position and the statement of activities, some 
amounts reported as inter-flmd activity and balances in the funds were eliminated or reclassified. Inter-
fund receivables and payables were eliminated to minimize the "grossing up" effect on assets and 
liabilities within the govermnental activity's columns. 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

The Town follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements: 

1. In the month of September, the Mayor submits to the Board of Aldermen a proposed operating 
budget for the fiscal year commencing the following October 1. The operating budget includes 
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. 

2. Public hearings are conducted at Town Hall to obtain taxpayer comments. 

Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. 

3. The Mayor is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between deparhnents within any flmd; 
however, the Board of Aldermen must approve any revisions that alter the total expenditures of 
any ftind. Therefore, the level of budgetary responsibility is by total appropriations: however, for 
report purposes, this level has been expanded to a functional basis. 

4. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control (kvice during the year for the 
General Fund. 

5. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted and amended by the Board of Aldermen. 

6. All budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year; however, unexpended fimd 
balances are used to fund expenditures of subsequent years. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Budgets for the General and Special Revenue funds are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, and Investments 

A consolidated bank account has been established into which most monies are deposited and from which 
most disbursements are made. In addition, investment purchases are charged, and maturities are deposited 
to the consolidated bank account. The puipose of this consolidation of bank accounts is to provide 
administrative efficiency and to maximize investment earnings. The account titled "Cash and cash 
equivalents" is therefore composed of a fund's pro rata share of the cash balance in the consolidated cash 
account as well as its pro rata share of certificates of deposit with maturities of three months or less and 
the Louisiana Asset Management Pool ("LAMP") account. Investment earnings are shared by each fund 
on a pro rata basis according to its average cash balance. 

Cash Equivalents 

Certificates 
At September 30.2019 

Canying Amount on 

Balance Sheet 

Cash 

$ 4,415,891 $ 

Investments 
Certifkates 
Of Depostt 

$ 2,050,844 

Total 

6.466.735 

Bank Balances: 
a: Insured (FDIC) or coltaleralized 
wMi securtties held by die entity' 
or its agent in the entity's name 750,000 750.000 

b. Collateralized with securities held by 
pledging financiai institutions trust 
department or agent in the entity's name 3.665,891 2.050.844 5.716.735 

c- Uncollateralized, including any securities 

heki for the enttty but not in the entity's name 

Total Bank Balances $ 4.415,891 $ 2.050.844 6.466.735 

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or bank 
balances) must be secwed by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal 
agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all 
times must be equal to or greater than the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are 
held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is mutually 
acceptable to both parties. 

31 



TOWTV OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Even though the pledged securities may be considered uncollateralized (Category 3) under the provisions 
of GASB Statement 3, LSA-R.S. 39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank to 
advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of being notified by the Town that the fiscal agent 
has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. 

Market Mutual Funds and Pooled Deposits 

Money market mutual funds and pooled deposits are stated at fair value based on quoted market values. 
The fair value of the deposits is determined on a weekly basis to monitor any variances between 
amortized cost and market value. Legally binding guarantees have not been obtained to support the value 
of the deposits as all are short-term, highly liquid securities. 

State statutes authorize the Town to invest in E^nited States bonds, treasury notes and bills, or certificates 
or time deposits of state banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks having principal offices 
in Louisiana. In addition, local governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest in Louisiana Asset 
Management Pool, Inc. ("LAMP"), a non-profit corporation formed by an initiative of the State Treasurer 
in 1993 and organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana, wLich operates a local government 
investment pool. 

Receivables and due from other Governments 

In the govemment-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet 
received. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities inclu(k sales and use taxes and 
franchise taxes. Business-type activities report customer's utility service receivables as tlieir major 
receivables. Uncollectible utility service receivables :^e recognized as bad debts at the time information 
becomes available which would indicate the un-collectability of the particular receivable. Although the 
specific charge-off method is not in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), 
no allowance for uncollectible receivables is recor(kd due to immateriality at September 30, 2020 
Unbilled utility service receivables resulting from utility services rendered between the date of meter 
reading and billing and the end of the month, are recorded at year-end. Revenues &om grants are recorded 
as earned when eligibility requirements are met. 

Uncollectable Allowance 

Uncollectible receiv^ables for ad valorem taxes and utilities are recognized when incurred by direct write
off. Although this is a departure from generally accepted accounting principles, historically such amounts 
have been immaterial. 

Inventoiy 

Inventory of the General Fund consists of expendable supplies held for consumption and is reported at 
cost. Expenditures are recognized when the items are purchased. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability 

Excess of expenditures over appropriations; There was an amenchnent to the budget for the year ended 
September 30, 2020. No funds had revenues, expenditures, or transfers in excess of budgeted 
appropriations, and exceeding 5%. 

On Behalf of Payments for Salaries 

Included in the General Fund financial statements are amounts paid by the State of Louisiana as 
supplemental salaries to the Town's policemen. The payments of S37,950 are included on the financial 
statements as Revenue and Public Safety Expenditures. 

Fund Balance and Equitx' Classifications 

GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Repoiting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, establishes 
standards for five fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to 
which a government is bound to obsen-e constraints imposed upon the use of resources reported in 
government funds. 

Non-spendable Fund Balance - Classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are 
either (a) not in spen(fable form - prepaid items or inventories; or (b) legally or contractually required to 
be maintained intact. The spendable portion of the fund balance comprises the remaining four 
classifications: restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. 

Restricted Fund Balance - This classification reflects the constraints imposed on resources either (a) 
externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed 
by law tlirough constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Committed Fund Balance - These amounts can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints 
imposed by formal resolutions or ordinances of the Town alderman - the government's highest level of 
decision-making authority. Those committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the 
Town aldermen remove the specified use by taking the same t^qie of action imposing the commitment. 
This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund 
have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements. 

Assigned Fund Balance - This classification reflects the amounts constrained by the Town's "intent" to be 
used for specific purposes but are neither restricted nor committed. The Town's aldermen and 
management have the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes. Assigned fund 
balances include all remaining amounts (except negative balances) that are reported in governmental 
funds, other than the general fund, that are not classified as non-spendable and are neither restricted nor 
committed. 

Unassigned Fund Balance - This fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund. It is also 
used to report negative fund balances in other governmental funds. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

The government-wide statement of net position reports $952,514 of restricted net position, all of which is 
restricted by enabling legislation. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the TOVVTI'S policy to use 
externally restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources - committed, assigned and unassigned - in 
order as needed. 

Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets are reported for cash, money market mutual funds, or pooled deposits legally restricted 
for specified uses such as payment of debt service and fiscal fees on long-term debt. 

^Tien both restricted and umestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town's policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed. 

A ccumidated Compensated Absences 

Allowable annual vacation and sick leave is prescribed by municipal ordinance, based on length of 
continuous employment by tlie Town, accrued on an employment anniversary basis, and accrued to 
specified maximums. Compensatory time is also granted to supervisory personnel in lieu of overtime 
pay. Employees may accumulate unused compensatory time which is paid to the employee in the form of 
time off or at the employee's current rate of pay upon separation fi"om service. 

Estimated acciued compensated absences resulting from unused vacation and compensatory time at the 
end of the fiscal year ^u^e recorded as long-term liabilities in the government-wide financial statements in 
accordance with GASB Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences. No liability is 
recorded for non-vesting accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits. 

Compensated absences are paid from the General Fund that is responsible for all employees' 
compensation and are recorded in the fund financial statements only when payment is actually made. 

Balance and Equity Classi fications 

In the government-wide statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components: 

N'et investment in capital assets - consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgage, notes, or 
other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

Restricted assets - consists of assets with constraints placed on their use either by (1) external groups such 
as creditors, grantor, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments; or (2) law through 
constitutional provisions of enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted assets - all other assets that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or "net investment in 
capital assets". 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Lons- term Liabilities 

Accrued compensated absences, outstanding debt, and the related accrued interest is reported as liabilities 
in the government- wide financial statements. The fund financial statements recognize proceeds of debt 
as other financing sources of the current period. Expenditures for compensated absences, long-term debt 
principal, and interest payments are recorded in the fund financial statements only when payment is due. 

Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, (kferred outflows of resources, and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, infonnation about the fiduciary net position of the 
Municipal Police Employees Retirement System (the "Flans"), and additions to/deductions from the 
Plans' fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the plans. 
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when 
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions 

GASB approved Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Statement No. 
71, Pension Transition for Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an Amendment of GASB 
Statement No. 68. GASB Statement No. 68 addresses accounting and financial reporting for pensions that 
are provided to the employees of state and local governmental employers through pension plans that are 
administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements that meet the criteria established by this stan(tod. 
GASB Statement 71 requires a government employer to recognize a net pension liability measured as of a 
date ("measurement date") no earlier than the end of its prior fiscal year. If the government employer 
makes a contribution to a defined benefit plan between the measurement date of the reported net pension 

liability and the end of the government's reporting period, the government is required to recognize its 
contribution as a deferred outflow of resources. The provisions of GASB Statement No. 68 and GASB 
Statement No. 71 were implemented by the Town during the fiscal year ending September 30, 2020. 

The Statement established standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of 
resources, deferred inflows of resources and expenses/expenditures. 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statements of net position report a separate section for deferred outflows of 
resources. This separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net position that applies 
to future period and so will not be recognized as expenditure until then. In addition to liabilities, the 
statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate 
financial statement element represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so 
will not be recognized as revenue until then. The Town's deferred outflows and deferred inflows are 
resources related to pensions. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, expenditures, and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Note 2 - Cash and Investments 

Statutes allow the Town to deposit funds in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, or time 
deposits wdth state banks organized under Louisiana law^ or any other state of the United States, as well as 
invest in United States bonds, treasury notes, or certificates. These are classified as investoients if their 
maturities exceed 90 days; however, if the maturities are 90 days or less, they are classified as cash 
equivalents. 

At September 30, 2020, the Town's cash and cash equivalents were made up of petty cash of $370, and 
checking and savings accounts of $7,153,198, for a total of $7,153,568. Cash and cash equivalents of 
$2,944,306 included in this total is restricted and is shown as such on the Statement of Net Position. 

As of September 30, 2020, the Town had a total of $2,050,845 invested in certificates of deposit having 
maturities of more than 90 days. Certificates of deposit of $1,341,498 included in this total ^e restricted 
and are shown as such on the Statement of Net Position. 

The cash equivalents and investments of the Town are subject to the following risks. 

Interest rate risk is defined as the risk that ch^ges in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of 
investments. The Town does not have a policy addressing interest rate risk. 

Credit risk: under state law, the Town may deposit funds with a fiscal agent organized under the laws of 
Louisiana, the laws of any other state in the union, or the laws of the United States. The Town may invest 
in United States bonds, treasury notes and bills, government backed agency securities or certificates and 
time deposits of state banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks having principal officers in 
Louisiana. 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in event of a bank failure, the government's deposit may not be 
returned to it. Louisiana Revised Statutes 39:1218-1229 required the collateralization of local government 
deposits that are greater than the amount insured by the Federal Depository Insurance Coverage (FDIC) 
limit (currently $250,000 per institution). 

LAMP is administered by LAMP, Inc., a non-profit corporation organized under the law-s of the State of 
Louisiana. Only local govermnent entities having contracted to participate in LAMP have an investment 
interest in its pools of assets. Investaient earnings are shared by each fund on a pro rata basis according to 
its average cash balance. 
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LAMP is an investment pool that, to the extent practical, invest in a manner consistent with 
GASB Statement No. 79. The following facts are relevant for investment pools: 

• Credit risk: LAMP is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor's. 

• Custodial risk: LAMP participants' investments in the pool are evidenced by shares 
of the pool. Investments in pools should be disclosed, but not categorized because 
they are not evidenced by securities that exist physical or book-entr}^ form. The 
public entity's investment is with the pool, not the securities that make up the pool; 
therefore, no disclosure is required. 

• Concentration of credit risk: Pooled investments are excluded from the 5 percent 
disclosure requirement. 

• Interest rate risk: LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants 
immediate access to their account balances. LAMP prepares its own interest rate risk 
disclosure using the weighted average maturity (WAM) method. The WAM of 
LAMP assets is restricted to not more than 90 days and consists of no securities 
with maturity in excess of 397 days or 762 days 
for U.S. Government floating/variable rate investments. 

• Foreign currency risk: Not applicable. 

The investments in LAMP are stated at fair value. The fair value is determined on a weekly basis by 
LAMP and the value of the position in the external investment pool is the same as the net value of the 
pool shm^es. LAMP, Inc. is subject to the regulatory oversight of the state treasurer and the board of 
directors. LAMP is not registered with the SLC as an investment company. 

Note 3 - Property Tax 

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied on October 1 
and payable December 31. The Town collects its own property taxes. Town property tax revenues are 
recognized when levied to the extent tliat they result in cuiTent receivables. 

The Town is permitted by the Municipal Finance Law of the state to levy taxes up to 11.67 mills on the 
total assessed value for the TOVVTI for govemmental services other than the payment of principal and 
interest on long term debt and in required amounts for the payment of principal and interest on long term 
debt. 

For the year ended September 30, 2020 taxes of 11.75 mills were levied on property with taxable assessed 
valuations totaling $17,110,824 for a total of $215,827. The taxes were dedicated for general corporate 
purposes. 

Note 4 - Capital Assets 

Capital assets and depreciation activity as of and for the year ended September 30, 2020 for the primary 
20vemment is as follows: 
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Governmental activities; 

Capital assets not l^ing deprecmted: 
Land 
Construction in progress 

Odier capital assets: 

Infrastructure 

Totak 

Less accumulated depreciation: 

Infrastructure 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets, net 

Balance 
10/1/2019 

$ 284.161 
136,078 

6,113,435 

11,086,078 
1,706,686 

19,326,438 

3,206,968 
6,503,628 
1.324.819 

11,035.415 

$ 8.291.024 

Additrons 

15,067 

421,352 
57,388 

493,807 

125,753 
354,906 

90,244 

570,903 

Deletbns 

97,324 

27,334 
136,078 

260,736 

86.540 

86.540 

(77.096) 174,196 

Balance 
9/30/2020 

$ 284.161 
136,078 

6,031,178 

11,480,096 
1,627,996 

19,559,509 

3332,721 

6,858,534 

1328,,523 

11319,778 

$ 8,039,732 

Business-type activ^es: 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land 

Land improvement 

Otlier capital assets: 

Buildings 

Infrastructure 

Equ^ment 

Totals 

Less accumulated depreciation: 

Land improvement 
Buildings 
Infrastructure 

Equipment 

Total accumukted depreciation 

Business-type actmties: 

Capital assets, net 

Balance 

10/1/2019 

S 10,718 

66,850 

551,224 
30,416,029 

990.147 

32.034,968 

16,354 
282,377 

7,723,458 
772.177 

8,794,366 

S 23.240.602 

Additions Deletions 

500,495 
23.421 

523,916 

1,903 
8,749 

690,430 

37,489 

738,571 

S (214.6551 

66.850 

22 989 

b839 

22.989 

22 989 

66.850 

Balance 

9/30/2020 

10.718 

551324 

30,916,524 
990,579 

32.469.045 

18357 
291,126 

8,413,888 

786,677 

9,509,948 

22,959,097 
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Depreciation is computed on capital assets based on the estimated useful lives of the assets. The straight-
line method with no salvage value is used. Buildings and improvements are depreciated over 20 - 40 
years; water and sewer plant and related lines are depreciated over 25 - 50 years; all other equipment is 
depreciated over 5-15 years. Depreciation expense of $1,309,473 for the year ended September 30, 
2020 was charsed to the following governmental functions: 

Government activities: 

General Government 

Public Safety 

Streets 

Recreation 

Total 

$ 328,753 

140,048 

93,577 

8,525 

$ 570,903 

Business-tyq)e activTties: 

Water 738,571 

Note 5 - Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 

The payables of $526,740 at September 30, 2020 are as follows: 

Account payable 

Accrued payioll and retirement expenst 

Total 

Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities 

311,120 
16.466 

327.586 

61,718 
9.542 

71.260 

Total 

372,838 
26.008 

398.846 

Note 6 - Certificates of Indebtedness and Bond Indebtedness 

Business Type Activities: 

Certificates of Indebtedness 

2010 Water Revenue Bonds 

2010 Revenue Bonds 

2015 Sewer Revenue Bon^h 

2(X)6 Sewer Reveni^ Bonds 

Total 

Beginning 

Babnce 

$ 5,093,000 

6,849,000 

792,819 

1,265,198 

$ 14.000.017 

Additions Reductions 

(542,000) 

(15,036) 

(26,803) 

S 1933.8391 

Ending 

4,743,000 

6,307,000 

777.783 

1,238,395 

13.066.178 

Current 

Maturities 

$ 362Xm 

15,453 

27.961 

$ 952.414 

On August 1, 2006, the Town issued forty-year sewer revenue bonds in the amount of $1,523,000 for the 
purpose of funding sewerage system improvements. Monthly installments of $6,671, including principal 
and 4.25% interest, began September 1, 2007. Monthly sinking fund deposits of $6,671 are required 
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TOWTV OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

through July 2046. As of September 30, 2020, the Town had received advances in the miount of 
$1,523,000. Interest of $53,252 was paid during the year ended September 30, 2020. Outstanding bond 
indebtedness for this issue as of September 30, 2020 amounted to $1,238,395. 

Future annual payment requirements on the 2006 sewer revenue boncE are as follows: 

Year ending September 30. Interest Princ^al Debt Service 
2021 $ 52,091 $ 27,961 $ 80,052 
2022 50,880 29,172 80,052 
2023 49,615 30,437 80,052 
2024 48,296 31,756 80,052 
2025 46,920 33,132 80,052 
Thereafter 535,429 1,085,937 1,621,366 

Total $ 783,231 S 1,238395 $ 2,021,626 

During the year ended September 30, 2010, the Town issued twenty-year sewer revenue bonds in the 
amount of $ 11,000,000 for the purpose of funding improvements related to the expansion of sewerage 
capacity in order to accommodate the new Lamb Weston facility. As of September 30, 2020, the Town 
had received advances in the amount of $11,000,000. Outstanding bond indebtedness for this issue 
amounted to $6,307,000, as of September 30, 2020, and is included on the Proprietary Fund Statement of 
Net Position as Bonds Payable. These bonds call for annual principal payments beginning February 2012, 
and interest at .45% plus administrative fees at .50% payable on a semi-annual basis. The Town is 
required to make monthly Sinking Fund, Reser\'e Fund, and Contingency fund deposits for the 2010 
issue. 

Both the 2006 and the 2010 sewer revenue bond issues were funded through Louisiana Department of 
Environmental Quality, therefore the Town has combined the monthly sinking fund, reseive fund, and 
contingency fund requirements for each issue. The Town is now making one combined monthly sewer 
revenue sinking fimd deposit to a single bank account titled USDA Debt Service, one combined monthly 
sewer revenue reserve fund deposit to a single bank account designated as 2006/2010 Sewer Revenue 
Bond Resen'e Fund, and one combined monthly sewer revenue contingency fund deposit to a single bank 
account designated as 2010 Sewer Revenue Bond. 

Contingency Fund 

As of September 30, 2020, the Sewer Revenue Sinking Fund had a balance of $826,417 available for 
funding of future 2006 and 2010 Sewer Revenue Bond principal, interest, and administrative fees. 

As of September 30, 2020, the 2006/2010 Sewer Revenue Bond Reserve Fund had a balance of $479,010 
and the 2010 Sewer Revenue Bond Contingency Fund had a balance of $208,134. Monthly sewer revenue 
bond sinking fund deposits of $57,242, including $6,671 for the 2006 bond issue, are to contini^ until the 
2010 bond issue is paid in full. Montlily sewer revenue bond sinking fund deposits of $6,671 will 
continue beyond the 2010 bond issue repayment until the 2006 bond issue is paid in full. According to 
the bond payment schedules, the 2006 Sewer Revenue Bond Reser\'e funding requirement has a cap of 
$80,049, and the 2010 Sewer Revenue Bond Resen'e fmiding requirement has a cap of $301,852. As of 
September 30, 2020, the reser\'e requirements have been satisfied. The 2006 Sewer Revenue Bond 
requires monthly contingency flind now only requires deposits of $668 once since the $80,049 reserve 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

fund cap has been met. Hie 2010 Sewer Revenue Bond Contingency funding requirement of 5% of the 
Water System's sewer revenue for the preceding month has a $200,000 cap. As of September 30, 2020, 
the reserve requirements have been satisfied. The Towm now has a combined contingency funding 
requirement of only $668 per month which will continue for the life of the sewer revenue bonds. 

Estimated future annual principal, interest, and administrative fee payment requirements on the 2010 
Sewer Revenue Bonds are as follows: 

Interest Total 
Year ending September 30, and Fees Princ^al Debt Service 
2021 S 34,689 $ 547,000 S 581,689 
2022 31,677 550,638 546,288 
2023 28,648 553,666 582314 
2024 25,603 556,711 582314 
2025 22,541 559,773 582,314 
Thereafter 69,997 3,539,212 3,609309 

Total S 213,155 $ 6,307,000 $ 6,484,128 

During the year ended September 30, 2010, the Town also issued twenty-year water revenue bonds in the 
amount of $7,500,000 for the purpose of funding improvements related to expansion of water capacity in 
order to accommodate the Lamb Weston facility. As of September 30, 2020, the Town had received 
advances in the amount of $7,500,000. Outstanding bond indebtedness for this issue amounted to 
$4,743,000 and is included on the Proprietary Fund Statement of Net Position as Bonds Payable. These 
bonds call for annual principal payments beginning February 2012, and interest at 2.95% plus 
administrative fees at .50% payable on a semi-annual basis beginning August 2010. The Town is required 
to make monthly 2010 Water Revenue Bond Sinking Fund deposits beginning April 2010. The monthly 
sinking fund deposit requirements are approximately $43,800 through January 2031. 

As of September 30, 2020, the 2010 Water Revenue Bond Sinking Fund had a balance of $421,571 
available for funding of future 2010 Water Revenue Bond principal, interest, and administrative fees. 
This 2010 issue also requires monthly Reserve Fund deposits of at least $4,358 until the fund reaches 
$261,493, and monthly Contingency Fund deposits equal to 5% of the Water System's water revenues for 
the preceding month until the contingency fund reaches $100,000. As of September 30, 2020, the 2010 
Water Revenue Bond Reserve Fund had a balance of $273,948 and the 2010 Water Revenue Bond 
Contingency Fund had a balance of $174,492. As of September 30, 2020, the reserve requirements have 
been satisfied. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

Estimated future anniml principal, interest, and administrative fee payment requirements on the 2010 
Water Revenue Bonds are as follows: 

Interest and Total Debt 
Year ending September 30, Fees Princ^al Service 
2021 157,320 362,000 $ 519,320 
2022 144,624 374,000 518,624 
2023 131,497 387,000 518,497 
2024 117,921 400,000 517,921 
2025 111,056 414,000 525,056 
Thereafter 292,594 2,806,000 3,098,594 

Total $ 955,012 $ 4,743,000 $ 5,698,012 

During the year ended September 30, 2015, the Town issued forty-year sewer revenue bonds in the 
amount of $875,000 for the purpose of constructing and acquiring improvements and replacements to the 
sew^erage system, including equipment and accessories. Outstanding bond indebtedness for this issue in 
the amount of $777,783 is included on the Proprietary Fund Statement of Net Position as Bon(k Payable. 
These bonds call for annual payments of $36,648 beginning June 1, 2017, at an interest of 2.75%. 

This 2016 bond issue also requires monthly Debt Service Reserve Fund deposits equal to 10% of the 
monthly payment each month over the life of the loan until one annual installment has been accumulated. 
This reserve fund is required to establish an emergency fund for maintenance and repairs and debt 
repayment should the need arise. Ten percent of the proposed loan instalhnent equals $331 per month. In 
addition, the Town must fund a (kpreciation reserv-e for short-lived assets by depositing a smn of $735 
monthly in addition to that required for the debt service reserve. 

Estimated future annual principal, interest, and administrative fee payment requirements on the 2015 
Sewer Revenue Bonds are as follows: 

Year ending September 30, 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
Thereafter 

Total 

Princ^al 
$ 15,453 

15,883 
16,325 
16,780 
16,607 

696,734 

$777,782 
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TOWTV OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

Note 7 - Long-term LiabUities 

The long-term liabilities for the year ended September 30, 2020 were as follows: 

Net Pension Liability 
Compensated Absences 

Total 

Balance 
10/1/2019 

1,025,972 
56,605 

Increase 

6.733 

1.082.577 

Note 8 - Interfund Receivables and Payables 

Interfund balances at September 30, 2020, were as follows: 

Decrease 
Balance 

9/30/2020 

$ 107,947 $ 918,025 
63.338 

6.733 $ 107.947 1 981.363 

Funds 
Governmental Fund 
Proprietary Fund 

Total 

Receivables 
$ 98,398 

7. 

$ 106.046 

Payables 
8,837 

97.209 

106,046 

Note 9 - Interfund Transfers 

Interilind transfers for the year ended September 30, 2020 were as follows: 

Transfers In Transfers Out 
Governmental Funds: 
General fund 
Sales tax fund 
Capital project fund 
LCDBG Fund 
Proprie taiy Funds: 
Enterprise flmd 

Total 

$ 1,261,771 

81,660 

352,810 

S 1.696.241 

491,772 
39,249 

352,810 

812,410 

1,696,241 

Note 10 - Sales Taxes 

Half Cent Sales Tax 

On July 15, 1980, a resolution was adopted for a half-cent sales tax for the Town. On September 13, 
1980, a special election was held to vote on the proposed sales tax. The sales tax was adopted by a vote 
of 523 to 404 and became effective November 1, 1980, for ten years. It was renewed on November 6, 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

Note 10 - Sales Taxes, continued 

1990 for ten years, again on November 3, 1998 for ten-years, again on September 8, 2008, and again on 
March 24, 2018 for an additional ten-year period. The revenue from this sales tax is dedicated as follows: 

1. The first $60,000 is dedicated to the maintenance, operation and addition to the Town's 
recreational facilities. 

2. After satisfaction of the above, funds can be used in any of the areas listed below: 

A. Street, sidewalk, bridge, and alley maintenance and improvement 
B. Streetlight maintenance 
C. Garbage collection 
D. Police department 
E. Fire department 
F. Public parks 
G. Airport 
H. Real estate and equipment acquisition as related to the above 

One Cent Sales Tax 

On October 7, 1989, the voters of the Town approved a one-cent sales tax that became effective January 
1, 1990 for a period of ten years. The tax was renewed on November 3, 1998 for ten years, and on 
September 8, 2008 it was renewed for an additional ten-year period. The revenue from this tax is 
dedicated to streets, drainage and other capital improvements. 

Note 11 - Risk of Loss 

The Town is exposed to a variety of risks that may result in losses. These risks may include possible loss 
from acts of God, injury to employees, property damage, or breach of contract. The Town finances these 
potential losses through purchasing insurance from several commercial companies, as well as self-
insuring physical damage on its automobiles. The level of coverage has remained constant. The Town is 
not a member of a risk pool. All claims currently filed are adequately covered by the policies in place 
with no outstanding liabilities for the Town. 

Note 12 - Pension Plans and Other Pension Liabilities 

The Town of Delhi (the Town) is a participating employer in two cost sharing defined benefit pension 
plans. These plans are achninistered by the Municipal Employee's Retirement System of Louisiana 
(MERS) and Municipal Police Employee's Retirement System (MPERS). Article X, Section 29(F) of die 
Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns die authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of these 
plans to the State Legislature. Each system is administered by a separate board of trustees. Each of 
System issues an annual financial report that is available to the public which includes financial statements 
and required supplementary information for the Systems. These reports may be obtained by writing, 
calling, or downloading the reports as follows: 

MERS: 7937 Office Park Boulevard | Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809 | www.mersla.com 
MPERS: 7722 Office Park Boulevard 1 Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809 | www.lampers.org 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (^^lERS) 

The Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (MERS) is the administrator of a cost sharing 
multiple employers defined benefit pension plan. The System was originally established by Act 356 of the 
1954 regular session of the Legislature of the State of Louisiana. The System provides retirement benefits 
to employees of all incorporated villages, towns and cities within the State which do not have then own 
retirement system, and which elect to become members of the System. For the year ended September 30, 
2019, there were 87 contributing municipalities in Plan A and 69 in Flan B. The Town of Delhi is a 
participant in Plan B only. 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (^^IFERS) 

The Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (MPERS) is the administrator of a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer plan. Membership in the System is mandatory for any full-time police officer 
employed by a municipality of the State of Louisiana and engaged in law enforcement, empowered to 
make arrests, providing he or she does not have to pay social security and providing he or she meets the 
statutory criteria. The System provides retirement benefits for municipal police officers. The projections 
of benefit payments in the calculation of the total pension liabilit}'^ includes all benefits to be provided to 
current active and inactive employees through the System in accordance with benefit terms and any 
additional legal agreements to provide benefits that are in force at the measurement date. Benefit 
provisions are authorized within Act 189 of 1973 and amended by LRS 11:2211- 11:2233. 

Funding Policy 

Article X, Section 29(E)(2)(a) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns the Legislature the authority 
to detennine employee contributions. Employer contributions are actuarially (ktennined using statutorily 
established methods on an annual basis and are constitutionally required to cover the employer's portion 
of the normal cost and provide for the amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. Employer 
contributions are adopted by the Legislature annually upon recommendation of the Public Retirement 
Systems' Actuarial Committee (PRSAC). 

Contributions to the plans are required and determined by State statute (which may be amended) and are 
expressed as a percentage of covered payroll. The contribution rates in effect for the year ended 
September 30, 2020, for the Town and covered employees were as follows: 

Pkn Town Employees 

MERS (Plan B) 15.50% 5.00% 
MPERS 33.75% 10.00% 

The contributions made to the Systems for the past two fiscal years were as followed: 

Plan 2020 2019 2018 

KIERS(PlanB) S 80,629 S 91,707 S 
MPERS 26,562 32,455 34,142 

Total $ 107,191 5 124,162 5118,401 

45 



TOWTV OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

The following schedule lists the Town's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability and the 
allocation percentages were used in calculating each employer's proportionate share of pension amounts. 
The Town uses this measurement to record its Net Pension Liability and associated amounts as of 
September 30, 2020 in accordance with GASB Statement 68. The schedule also inclines the 
proportionate share allocation rate used at June 30, 2020 along with the change compared to the June 30, 
2019 rate. The Town's proportion of the Net Pension Liability was based on a projection of the Agency's 
long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating employers, actuarially determined. 

MLRS 
MPLRS 

Total 

Net Pension 
Liability^ at Jime 

30, 2020 
$ 673,464 

244,561 

$ 918,025 

Crurent 
Measwement 

Rate 
0.743152% 
0.026461% 

Previous 
Measurement 

Rate 
0.884596% 
0.027761% 

Increase 
(Decrease) 
-0.141444% 

-0.00130% 

The following schedule lists each pension plan's recognized pension expense (benefit) for the Town for 
the year ended June 30, 2020. 

Municipal Lrrployee's Retirement Fund 

Munkipal Police Lnployees' Retirement Fund 

Total 

90,481 

21,712 

112,193 

{The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank) 
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At September 30, 2020, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows ofResources: MERS MPERS TOTAL 

Differences between expected and actual experience 

Net difference between projected and actual investment 
earnings on iiwestments 

Changes of assumptions 

Changes in proportion 

Town contributions subsequent to the measurement date 

Total deferred outflows of resources 

73,114 
20,872 

K-) 

21,586 

121,865 

29,340 
5,811 

15,956 

7.879 

58.986 

102.454 
26,683 

22,249 

29,465 

S 180,851 

Deferred Inflows ofResources: MERS MPERS TOTAL 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Net difference between projected and actual investment 

eamings on investments 
Changes of assumptions 

Changes in proportion 

Total deferred inflows of resources 

11,332 

72,433 

9,633 

6,035 

46,944 

1.765 62,612 

$ 20,965 

6,035 

119377 

146,377 

The Town reported a total of $29,465 as deferred outflows of resources related to pension contributions 
made subsequent to the measurement period of June 30, 2020 which will be recognized as a reduction in 
net pension liability in the year ended September 30, 2020. The following schedule lists the pension 
contributions made subseqi^nt to the measurement period for each pension plan: 

Municipal Employee's Retirement Fund 

Munic^al Police Employees' Retirement Frmd 

Total 

Subsequent 

Contributions 

> 21,586 

; 29.465 
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Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year ending June 30: MERS MPERS TOTAL 
2021 $ 4,066 S (5,202) $ (1,136) 
2022 (14,917) (14,681) (29,598) 
2023 16,657 2,809 19,466 
2024 10,709 5,569 16,278 

Total $ 16,515 ! S (11,505) $ 5,010 

Actuarial Assumptions 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability for 
each pension plan as of June 30, 2020 are as follows: 

Measurement/Valuation Date Expected Remiiniiig Servi::e Lives Investti^nt Rate ofRetum 
MERS Jinte 30,2020 3 years 6.95%, net of pension phn 

investminl e^ense, inchiding inflatbn 
MPERS Jiiite 30,2020 4 years 6.95%, net of invesUnent expense 

Mortality: 

MERS 

Mortality rates for non-disabled are based on PubG-2010(B) Heathy Retiree Table set and PubG-2010(B) 
Employee Table set equal to 120% for males and females, each adjusted using their respective male and 
female MP2018 scales. 

Mortality rates for disabled are based on PubNS-2010(B) Disabled Retiree Table set equal to 120% for 
male and females with full generational MP2018 scale. 

MPERS 

Mortality rates for non-disabled are based on Pub-2010 Heathy Retiree Table set and PubG-2010 
Employee Table set equal to 115% for males and females, each adjusted using their respective male and 
female MP2019 scales. 

Mortality rates for disabled are based on Pub-2010 Disabled Retiree Table set equal to 105% for male and 
115% for females with fiill generational projection using the MP2019 scale. 
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Salary Increases: 

MERS 
MERS 

Years of Service Salary Growth Rate 

1-4 7.4% Plan B 
Over 4 4.9% PlanB 

MPERS 
Years of Ser\4ce Salary Growth Rate 

1-2 12.30% 
Above 2 4.70% 

Cost of Living Adjustments: 

MERS 

The System is authorized under state law to grant a cost-of-living increase to members who have been 
retired for at least one year. The adjustment cannot exceed 2% of the retiree's original benefit for each full 
calendar year since retirement and may only be granted if sufficient flinck are available from investment 
income in excess of normal requirements. State law allows the System to grant an additional cost of living 
increase to all retirees and beneficiaries who are age sixty-five and above equal to 2% of the benefit being 
receiv ed on October 1, 1977, or the original benefit, if retirement commenced after that date. 

MPERS 

The Board of Trustees is authorized to provide annual cost-of-living adjustments computed on the amount 
of the current regular retirement, disability, beneficiary or survivor's benefit, not to exceed 3% in any 
given year. The Board is authorized to provide an additional 2% COLA, computed on the member's 
original benefit, to all regular retirees, disability, survivors and beneficiaries who are 65 years of age or 
older on the cut-off date which determines eligibility. 

Discount Rate: 

The following methods used by each of the retirement systems in determining the long-term rate of return 
on pension plan investments: 

MERS 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimates ranges of expected fiiture real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of 
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation of 2.6% and an 
adjustment for the effect of rebalancing /diversification. The resulting expected long-term rates of retum 
is 7.0% for the plan year ended June 30, 2020. 
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MPERS 

The forecasted long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimates ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected 
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected 
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected 2.55% inflation 
of and an adjustment for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. The resulting forecasted long-term rate 
of return is 7.19% for the plan year ended June 30, 2020. 

The following table provides a summary of the best estimates of arithmetic/geometric real rates of return 
for each major asset class included in each of the Retirement Systems target asset allocations as of June 
30, 2020: 

Long-Term Expected 
Target Allocations Real Rate of Return 

Asset Class MERS MPERS MERS MPERS 
Public Equity 53% - 2.33% 
Equity - 48.5% - 3.08% 
Public Fixed Income 38% - 1.67% 
Fixed Income - 33.5% - 0.54% 
Alternatives 9% 18% 0.40% 1.02% 
Other -
Total 100% 100% 4.40% 4.64% 

Inflation 2.60% 2.55% 

Expected Arithmetic Nominal Retwu 7.00% 7.19% 

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions 
will be made at the current contribution rate and that sponsor contributions will be made at rates equal to 
the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on those 
assumptions, each of the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
the total pension liability. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for MERS and 
MPERS were 7% and 7.19%, respectively for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

Sensitivity to Changes in Discount Rate 

The following table presents the Town's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability (NPL) using the 
discount rate of each Retirement System as well as what the Town's proportionate share of the NPL 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or one percentage-
point higher tlian the current rate used by each of the Retirement Systems: 
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MERS: Changes in Discomt Rate 

Discoimt Rates 

1% 
Decrease 
5.950% 

Current 
Discomt Rate 

6.950% 

1% 
Increase 
7.950% 

Net Pension Liability $896,506 $673,464 $484,739 

MPERS: Changes in Discomt Rate 

Discoimt Rates 

1% 
Decrease 
5.950% 

Current 
Discomt Rate 

6.950% 

1% 
Increase 
7.950% 

Net Pension Liability $343,583 $244,561 $161,784 

Payables to the System 

The Town recorded an accrued liability of $12,815, for the System for the year ended, September 30, 
2020 for the contractually required contribution for the month of September 2020. The amoimt is 
included in accounts and other payables in the statement of net position. 

Note 13 - Cooperative Endeavor Agreements 

On April 15, 2016, the Town and Delhi Area Fire Protection District No. 1 (the "District") entered into a 
cooperative endeavor agreement with Delhi Volunteer Fire Department, Inc. effective April 1, 2016 and 
remains in effect until terminated by one or both parties for the Town to defray the expenses or cost 
associated with furnishing fire protection to the citizens of the District. 

The Town agreed to pay the Fire Department a budgeted amount per month, with said budget to be 
approved annually by the Town of Delhi Town Coimcil. 

Note 14 - Contingencies and Risk Management 

As of the date of friis report, there were no pending or threatening litigation suits involving the Town. The 
Town is exposed to various risk of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, 
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Town carries commercial 
insurance for all risks of loss, including workers' compensation and employee health and accident 
insurance. There were no significant reductions in the insurance coverage during the fiscal year. 
Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the current year or the three prior fiscal 
years. 

The Town participates in numerous state and federal grants programs, which are govemed by various 
rules and regulations of the grantor agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject 
to audit and adjustments by the grantor agencies; ftierefore, to the extent that the Town has not complied 
with the rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money received may be required and 
the collectability of any related receivable as of September 30, 2020 may be impaired. In the opinion of 
Town management, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and 
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regulations governing the respective grants; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the 
accompanying financial statements for such contingencies. 

Note 15 - Subsequent Events 

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a novel coronavirus 
("COVID-19") as a global pandemic, which continues to spread throughout the United States. The 
COVID-19 pandemic has negatively impacted the global economy and created significant volatility and 
disruption of financial markets. The extent of impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Town's 
operational and financial performance will depend on certain developments, including the duration and 
spread of the outbreak and the impaet on its investments, customers, employees and vendors, all of which 
are uncertain and cannot be predicted or reasonably estimated at this time. No other subseqi^nt events 
occurrins: after this date have been evaluated for inclusion in these financial statements. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - Part II 



TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

General Fund 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

REVENUES 
Taxes: 

Ad Valorem 

Other Taxes, Penalties, Interest, ete. 

Licenses and Pennits 

Intergoveinmental Revenues: 

State Funds: 

Transpoitation Funds 

Grants 

Police Supplemental Pay 

Fines 

Garbage Collection 

Other Revenues 

Total Revenues 

Original 

210,000 

63,000 

151.500 

100,000 

280,800 

248.360 

Final 

Budget 

210,000 
63,000 
151,500 

100,000 
280,800 
248.360 

Actual 

216,054 

88,490 

212,820 

4,160 
58,761 
37,950 
54,028 

300,221 
147,766 

1,053,660 1.053.660 1,120,250 

Variance With 

Final Budget 

Favorable/ 

(Untavorable) 

6,054 

25,490 

61,320 

4,160 
58,761 
37,950 

(45,972) 
19,421 

(100.594) 

66.590 

EXPENDITURES 
General Government 

Public satety 

Str'eets 

Capital Oirtlay 

Total Expenditures 

1,007,316 
606,270 
330,656 
360,000 

2.304.242 

1,007,316 
606,270 
330,656 
360,000 

2.304.242 

870,240 
595,128 
237,146 
353,451 

2.055.965 

137,076 
11,142 
93,510 
6,549 

248.277 

Excess (deficiency) of Revenires over Expenditures (1,250,582) (1,250,582) (935,715) 314,867 

Other Financing Uses 

Transfers fiom Other Funds 1.283.220 1.283.220 1,261,772 (21.448) 

Net Change in Fimd Balance $ 32,638 32,638 $ 326,057 293,419 

FUND BALANCE 

Begimiing of year 

End of year 

2.028.201 

$ 2,354,258 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of required supplementary information. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Sales Tax Fund 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

REVENUES 
Taxes: 

Sales aiid Use: 
Sales Tax 1/2 cent 
Sales Tax 1 cent 

Total Taxes 

Oiieinal 

600,080 
607.000 

1.207.080 

Final 

600.080 
607.000 

1,207.( 

Actual 

596.072 
596.072 

1,192,144 

Variance Witli 

Final Budget 
Favorable/ 

(Unfavorable) 

(4,( 
(10.928) 

(14,936) 

Investment Earnings 

Total Revenues 1,207.( 1.207,080 1.200,807 3,273) 

EXPENDITURES 
General Government: 
Public Safety 

Streets 

Recreation 
Capital Outlay 

Total Expenditures 

400,198 
15,000 

25.000 
22.000 

400.198 
15.000 

25,000 
22.000 

395,330 
3.712 

2.716 

12,761 
4.279 

4,868 
11,288 

(2.716) 

12,239 
17.721 

462.198 462,198 418,798 43,400 

Excess (deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures 744.882 744,882 782,009 (49,673) 

Other Financing Uses 
Transfers Out 

Total Transfers 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

513.220 

513,220 

231.662 

513.220 

513.220 

231,662 

491.772 

491.772 

290,237 

21.448 

21,448 

(71,121) 

FUND BAL.ANCE 
Beginning of year-

End of year 

2,698,625 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of required supplementary information. 
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mWTs OF DELHI, LOLISIANA 

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 

As of the fiscal vear ended 2020 

En^toyer's Proportion of the Net Pensbn Liability 

Emptoyer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

Emptoyer's Covered Payroll 

En^toyer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension 

Lmbility as a Percentage of its Covered Payroll 

Plan Fiduciar}'^ Net Position as a Percentage 

Of the Total Pension Lkbility 

As of the fiscal vear ended 

Enptoyer's Proportion of the Net Pensbn Liability 

Emptoyer's Proportioiwte Share of the Net Pension Liability 

Emptoyer's Covered Payioll 

Enptoyer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension 

Ltobility as a Percentage of its Covered Payroll 

Plan Fidiuiiary Net Position as a Percentage 

Of the Total Pension Liability 

MERS (Plan B) MPERS 

0.7432% 0.0278% 

$ 673,464 $ 244,561 

$ 655,053 $ 100,485 

102.81% 243.38% 

66.26% 70.94% 

2019 

MERS (Plan B) MPERS 

0.8846% 

773,856 

678,499 

114.05% 

64.68% 

0.0278% 

252,116 

100,605 

250.60% 

71.01% 

(1) Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as available. 

(2) The amounts presented have a measurement date ofMERS's prior June 30^^ fiscal year end. 

The two Retirement Systems reported in this schedule are as follows: 
MERS (Plan B) = Municipal Employees' Retirement System 
MPERS = Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 

As ofthe fiscal yeai" ended 

En^Ioyer's Proportion of the Net Pensice Liability 

Enployer' s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Lmbility 

Enployer's CoveredPayrol 

Eit5)Ioyer's Proportionate Share ofthe Net Pension 

Liability as a Percentage of its Covered Payroll 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage 

Ofthe Total Pension Liability 

2018 

MERS (Han B) MPERS 

111.84% 

65.60% 

0.8581% 0.0376% 

725,807 $ 318,067 

648,987 S 102,142 

311.40% 

71.89% 

As ofthe fiscal year ended 

Enployer's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 

Enployer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

Enployer's Covered Payroll 

Enqjloyer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension 

Liability as a Percentage of its Covered Payroll 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage 

Of the Total Pension LiabiKty 

2017 

MERS (Plan B) MPERS 

0.8250% 

$ 713,841 

$ 619,585 

115.21% 

70.08% 

0.0294% 

$ 256,439 

$ 87,054 

294.57% 

63.49% 

(J) Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as available. 

(2) The amounts presented have a measurement date of MERS's prior June 20^^ fiscal year end. 

The two Retirement Systems reported in this schedule are as follows: 
MERS (Plan B) = Municipal Employees' Retirement System 
MPERS = Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 
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mWTs OF DELHI, LOLISIANA 

Schedule of Pension Contributions 

2020 

MERS (Plan B) MFERS 

Contractimlfy Required Contribution 

Contrfcutions in Relation to Contractual^ Required contributbn 

Contrfcution (Excess) Deficiency 

Emptoyer's Covered Employee Payroll 

Contributions as a % of Covered Employee Payroll 

80,629 S 26,562 

83,762 29,105 

(3,133) $ (2,543) 

583,377 88,656 

14.36% 32.83% 

2019 

MERS (Plan B) MPERS 

Contractual^ Required Contribution 

Contrfcutions in Relation to Contractual^ Required contribution 

Contribution (Excess) Deficiency 

Empbyer's Covered Employee Payroll 

Contrbutions as a % of Covered Employee Payroll 

94,674 S 27,959 

91,707 32,455 

2,967 $ (4,496) 

655,053 100,485 

14.00% 32.30% 

(1) Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as available. 

The two Retirement Systems reported in this schedule are as follows: 
MERS (Plan B) = Municipal Employees' Retirement System 
MPERS = Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Pension Contributions 

Contractuafly Required Coilribiiiou 

Contributioiis in Relation to Contractual^ Required ccsitribution 

Contribution (Excess) Deficiency 

Enployer's Covered Employee PayroE 

Contributions as a % of Covered Empbyee Payroll 

Contractual^ Required Contribution 

Contributions in Relatbn to Contractual^ Required conttibution 

Contribution (Excess) Deficiency 

Enptoyer's Covered En:q)loyee Payroll 

Contributions as a % of Covered Employee Pajroll 

2018 

MERS (Ran B) MPERS 

$ 84^59 $ 34,142 

86,776 30,847 

$ (2,517) $ 3,295 

648,987 102,142 

13.37% 30.20% 

2017 

MERS (Plan B) MPERS 

$ 67,362 $ 27,859 

71,276 27,364 

$ (3,914) $ 495 

619,585 87,054 

11.51% 31.44% 

(1) Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as 
available. 

The two Retirement Systems reported in this schedule are as follows: 
MERS (Plan B) = Municipal Employees' Retirement System 
MPERS = Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOITSIANA 

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information 
For the Yem Ended September 30, 2020 

Note 1 - Budgets 

1. Budgetary and Budgetary Accounting 

The Town of Delhi follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the 
financial statements: 

a. A proposed budget is prepared and submitted to the Town of Delhi for the fiscal year no 
later than fifteen days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. 

b. A summary of the proposed budget is published, and the public is notified that the proposed 
budget is available for public inspection. At the smne time, a public hewing is called. 

c. A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten days after publication of the call 
for a hearing. 

d. After the holding of the public hearing and completion of all action necessary to finalize and 
implement the budget, the budget is legally adopted prior to the commencement of the fiscal 
year for which the budget is being adopted. 

e. All budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 

f. The budget is adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP). Budgeted amounts included in the accompanying financial statements are as 
originally adopted or as finally amended by the Town of Delhi. Such amendments, except for 
capital outlay, were not material in relation to the original appropriations. 

2. Basis of Accounting 

All the Town's budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

Note 2 - Pension Plan - Net Pension Liability 

Changes of Benefit Terms 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System (Plan B) 

No changes. 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 

No changes. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOITSIANA 

Notes to the Required Supplementary Infonnation (Continued) 
For the YGBX Ended September 30, 2020 

Changes of Assumptions 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System (Plan B) 

In 2020, the investment rate of return and inflation rate decreased from 7.00% to 6.95%. 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 

In 2020, the investment rate of return and inflation rate decreased from 7.125% to 6.950%. 



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments to Agency Head 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

Jesse Washington, Mayor 

October 1,2019 - September 30,2020 

Purpose Amount 

Salaiy $ 6 
Benefits - Insurance 

Benefits - Retirement 3,400 
Car Allowance 
Per diem 
Reimbursements 

Travel 
Registration Fees 96 
Conference Travel 

Total Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head $ 71,496 

See Independent Auditors' Report. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Compensation Paid to the Mayor and Members of the Board of Alderman 
For the Year Ended September 30. 2020 

The schedule of compensation paid to the mayor and council members was prepared in compliance with 
House Concurrent Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legislature. Compensation of 
the mayor and coimcil members are include m the general administrative expenditures of the general 
fund. The mayor and council members receive compensation pursuant to Louisiana Revised Statute 
404.1. 

Amount 

Jessie Washington, Mayor S 68,000 

Council Members: 

Larry Houston, Council Member 6,000 
Larry Rancher. Council Member 6,000 
Ellen Oliver, Council Member 6,000 
Henry Washington, Council Member 6,000 
Lennon ^Tiitnev. Council Member 6,000 

Total Mayor's and Council Members'Compensation S 98,000 

See Independent Auditors' Report. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Insurance in Force 
As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

Insurance 
Company 

Policy 
Term Policy Description Policy Limits 

Community 
Financial 
Southern Fidelity 
Agency, Inc. 
National Union 
Fire 

10/1 /2019 Airport-General Liability 1,000,000 each occurrence 

lO/T/2019 50,000 rented to you 
1,000,000 personal & 
advertising 
injury aggregate 

Policy Number 

AP00322936225 

La Municipal 
Risk Management 
Agency 

Risk Management 

Community 
Financial 

Guaranty Bank-
Southern Fidelity 

Community 
Financial 

9/23/2020 Worker's Comp 

7/7/2019 General Liability 
Law Enforcement 
Errors & Omission 
Auto Liability 

100,000 each accident 
500,000 limit by disease 
100,000 by disease 

500,000 occurrence 
1,000 deductible 

7/7/2019 Commercial Property 500,000 

7/7/2020 Commercial Property 500000, $1,000 ded 

10/1/2019 Crime Policy 
10/2/2020 Employee Theft 

118,000.00 
1.000 deductible 

100-0452 

LA115383 

LA 125468 

CCP003563821 

Lloyd's/Lane & 
Associates 10/14/2020 Auto Physical Damage Varies/Vehicle LMA1900130 

Lane & 
Associates 
Underwritten By: 
Scottsdale 
Insurance Co. 

79,680 All covered property 
4/1/2020 Inland Marine-Equipment in one occurrence limit GLL1800200 

Community 
Financial 
Traveler's 

10/1/2019 Multi-Peril 
10/1/2020 Buildings 

Varies/Bldg. 5683C771 

See hidependent Auditors' Report. 
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INTERNAL CONTROL, COMPLIANCE, AND OTHER MATTERS 



WALKER & COMPANYAPC 
A CCOUNTANTS AND ADVISORS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDABDS 

OFFICES: 

2740 RUE DE JARDIN 

STE.lOO 

LAKE CHARLES 

LOUISIANA 70605 

{01 337-478-7902 

{F) 337-478-3345 

5100 WESTHEIMER 

SUITE 230 

HOUSTON 

TEXAS 77056 
(O) 713-588-4460 

(F] 713-966-6125 

WWW.JWALKERCO.COM 

MEMBER OF: 

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF 
CERTIEIED TUBLICACCOUN IAN rS 

Honorable Jesse Washington, Mayor 
and Members of the Board of Aldermen 

Town of Delhi, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, die financial 
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund 
of the Town of Delhi, Louisiana as of and for the year ended September 30, 2020, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Delhi, 
Louisiana's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 10, 
2021. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town of 
Delhi, Louisiana's intemal control over financial reporting (internal condrol) to determine 
the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing 
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Town of Delhi, Louisiana's intemal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Delhi, Louisiana's intemal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal coiurse of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material 
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there 
is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements 
will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is 
a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control 
that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control that we consider to 
be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Delhi, Louisiana's 
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters 
that are required to be reported imder Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control 
and comphance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part 
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
entity's intemal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for 
any other purpose. 

Lake Charles, Louisiana 
March 10, 2021 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOITSIANA 

Schedule of Findings and Responses 
For the YGBX Ended September 30, 2020 

L Summary of Auditors' Results 

a. Financial Statements 

1. The independent auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial 
statements of the Town of Delhi, Louisiana. 

2. There were no control deficiencies disclosed during the audit of tlie financial 
statements and reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control 
over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an 
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards. 

3. There were no instances of noncompliance that is reported in the Independent 
Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

b. Federal Awards 

N/A 

c. Management Letter 

No management letter was issued in connection with the audit for the year ended 
September 30, 2020. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOITSIANA 

Schedule of Findings and Responses 
For the YGBX Ended September 30, 2020 

II. Findings — Financial Statement Audit 

There were no current year findings. 
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TOWN OF DELHI, LOITSIANA 

Summary of Prior Year Findings 
For the YGBX Ended September 30, 2020 

III. Summan- of Prior Year Findings 

There were no prior year findings. 


